
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
February 4, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 7, 2010 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.   
(1) Letter dated 01/18/2010 from SSWD (Jim Quigley) to Kathleen Kane, 


CDC 







Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 
 
D. Waive full reading of the text and adopt by reading of title only Ordinance 42, 


Amending Policy 5010, Annual Organizational Meeting 
 
E. Waive full reading of the text and adopt by reading of title only Ordinance 43, re 


Method of Approving Changes to Rates and Fees by the Board 
 


  
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 10-01, Accepting the Final Audit for 


the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-02, Approving Mid-Year Adjustments to the 


FY 2009-10 Operating and Capital Budget (Est. time 15 minutes) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures (2nd Quarter, FY 2009-10, 


Operations and Capital) (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Implementing a two-year budget / Coordination with Capital 


Improvement Program (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-03, Approving an Agreement with Brelje & 


Race Engineers for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the 
CIP IV-B, Project 1 and Project 2 Improvement Projects (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros, et al. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
 


 2







 3


 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
January 7, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna 
      Lloyd Guccione 
      Nhu Le 
      Dan Fein 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 


 
The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 


p.m.) 
 
The GM noted that a corrected Minutes for the 12/3/2009 Board meeting had been passed out. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve the 
Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following 
items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 3, 2009 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  


 1







(1) Letter (undated) from Lloyd Guccione; E-mail from Steve Mack to Lloyd 
Guccione dated 12/23/2009; E-mail response dated 12/27/2009 from 
Lloyd Guccione 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
Public comment was made by Steve Mack. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.) 


A. (6:39 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 42, 
Amending Policy 5010, Annual Organizational Meeting.  The GM provided an 
overview of this matter.  Board questions ensued.  Director Smith made a motion to 
introduce by title only Ordinance 42, Revising Board Officer Elections.  Director Robb-
Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


B. (6:47 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 43, re 
Method of Approving Changes to Rates and Fees by the Board.  The GM introduced 
this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  
Further discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to introduce by reading of title only 
Ordinance 43, Adding Policy Number 3900 to the District’s Policy and Procedures, 
Allowing Water Rates to be Set by Resolution.  Further Board discussion ensued.  
Director Robb-Wilder seconded the motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 


C. (6:56 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 and FY 
2010-11 funding from the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight 
Committee/Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd 
Guccione.  No formal action was taken.  


D. (7:04 p.m.) Discussion/Action re 6-year Capital Improvement Program.  Staff 
recommendation for a policy regarding method of approving rates and fees.  The 
GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was 
made by Dan Fein.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Further Board 
discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken.  


E. (7:48 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Staff report on the FY 2010-11 Budget process 
and possible changes to District water rates and fees.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Public comment was made 
by Nhu Le.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder volunteered to sit on an ad 
hoc Budget Committee.  Director Schaap was appointed to sit on an ad hoc Budget 
Committee.  


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:58 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. Well rehabilitations  
6. 2005 Urban Water Management Plan  
 


 2







Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
Public comment was made by Dan Fein. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:28 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:28 p.m.) 
 
At 8:28 p.m. President Wikle announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:32 p.m. 
the Board went into Closed Session. At 9:05 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, 
et al.  


  No action was taken. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:06 p.m.) 
 
1. Adoption of Ordinances 42 and 43. 
2. Progress report on CIP IV-B. 
3. 2nd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted report 
4. Approval of FY 2008-09 Audit 
5. Update on CDC funding for Eastern/Western project 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 


 3







 4


 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:58 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:28 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:28 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:06 p.m.)

		ADJOURN












		CCF01292010_00000

		CCF01292010_00001






ORDINANCE NO. 42 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT REVISING  
BOARD OFFICER ELECTIONS 


 
  
  


WHEREAS, the current policy for election of Board officers has the election 
occurring at the annual organization meeting in December of each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, in years in which new directors are elected to the Board of 
Directors, those new directors are not seated until after the December Board 
meeting, thus depriving them the opportunity to vote on Board officers or be 
considered for one of the officer positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the past when this situation has arisen, the Board has postponed 
officer elections until the January meeting; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board desires to make this practice codified into a District 
policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board introduced this ordinance at the January 7, 2010 Board 
meeting. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
Section 1. Section 4050.10 of the District’s Policies and Procedures is 
changed as follows:   
 
4050.10  The officers of the District shall be appointed by the Board of Directors 
at the annual organizational meeting, as described in Section 5000.50, unless a 
particular office becomes vacant by action of the Board or operation of law, in 
which case, the Board may appoint a replacement officer at such time as the 
Board may choose.  All officers appointed by the Board shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board.  The officers and duties will be as follows: 
 


4050.11 President:  The President of the Board shall preside over all 
meetings.  The President shall be allowed to make and second motions 
and vote on all matters before the Board.  The President will sign all 
official documents of the District and when unavailable to do so, the Vice 
President shall have that authority.  In addition, the President will have 
the authority to create committees to carry out the business of the 
district. 
 
4050.12  Vice President:  The Vice President will perform the duties of the 
President when she/he is unavailable to carry out his/her obligations. 
 
4050.13  Financial Coordinator:  The Financial Coordinator shall be 
responsible for reviewing all warrant registers prior to Board meetings, 







Ordinance No. 42. Board Elections  2 
February 4, 2010 


and shall act as a co-signee on district checking accounts which will be 
established and require two signatures for any money withdrawn from 
said accounts.  The Financial Coordinator shall function as the liaison 
between the Board and the General Manager with regard to financial 
matters before the Board. 


Section 2.  Section 4050.15 of the District’s Policies and Procedures 
is changed to read as follows:  


4050.15  Clerk of the Board (Secretary) and Auditor:  The General Manager 
shall function as the Clerk of the Board (Secretary)with regard to signing 
documents on behalf of the District.  The General Manager may appoint such 
assistant(s) as may be necessary or convenient to carry out these functions.  
The Board of Directors shall retain an independent auditor to conduct an annual 
review of district books, records and financial affairs. 


 Section 3.  Section 5000.50 of the District’s Policies and Procedures is 
changed as follows:   


 
5000.50   Annual Organizational Meeting:  The Board of Directors shall hold an 
annual organizational meeting at its regular meeting in December, except in 
years when new Directors are elected to the Board at the November regular 
election and seated after the regular December meeting.  In those years, the 
annual organizational meeting will be held at the regular January meeting.  At 
this annual meeting, the Board will select and appoint officers, as described in 
sections 4050.11 through 4050.13, from among its members to serve during the 
coming calendar year.  
 
Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) 
days after the date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was adopted this 4th day of February, 2010, on roll call by the 
following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Wanda Smith:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 







Exhibit A.  Marked up version of Policy and Procedures changes in Ordinance 42 
 
 
 4050.10 The officers of the District shall be appointed by the Board of 
Directors at the annual organizational meeting, as described in Section 5000.50, unless 
a particular office becomes vacant by action of the Board or operation of law, in which 
case, the Board may appoint a replacement officer at such time as the Board may 
choose. in December of each year, and All officers shall serve at the pleasure of the 
Board.  The officers and duties will be as follows: 
 
  4050.11 President:  The President of the Board shall preside over 
all meetings.  The President shall be allowed to make and second motions and vote on 
all matters before the Board.  The President will sign all official documents of the District 
and when unavailable to do so, the Vice President shall have that authority.  In addition, 
the President will have the authority to create committees to carry out the business of 
the district. 
 
  4050.12 Vice President:  The Vice President will perform the duties 
of the President when she/he is unavailable to carry out his/her obligations. 
 
  4050.13 Clerk of the Board (Secretary):  The General Manager 
shall function as the Clerk of the Board (Secretary)with regard to signing documents on 
behalf of the District.  The General Manager may appoint such assistant(s) as may be 
necessary or convenient to carry out these functions. 
 
  4050.134 Financial Coordinator:  The Financial Coordinator shall be 
responsible for reviewing all warrant registers prior to Board meetings, and shall act as a 
co-signee on district checking accounts which will be established and require two 
signatures for any money withdrawn from said accounts.  The Financial Coordinator 
shall function as the liaison between the Board and the General Manager with regard to 
financial matters before the Board. 
 
  4050.15 Clerk of the Board and Auditor:  The General Manager 
shall function as the Clerk of the Board (Secretary) with regard to signing documents on 
behalf of the District.  The General Manager may appoint such assistant(s) as may be 
necessary or convenient to carry out these functions.  The Board of Directors shall retain 
an independent auditor to conduct an annual review of district books, records and 
financial affairs. 
 
 
 
 
 5000.50 Annual Organizational Meeting:  The Board of Directors shall hold 
an annual organizational meeting at its regular meeting in December, except in years 
when new Directors are elected to the Board at the November regular election and 
seated after the regular December meeting.  In those years, the annual organization 
meeting will be held at the regular January meeting.  At this annual meeting the Board 
will select and appoint  officers, as described in sections 4050.11 through 4050.13,  a 
President, Vice President and Financial Coordinator from among its members to serve 
during the coming calendar year.  





		Item III-D.1 ORD 42 - Board Elections

		Item III-D.2 Exhibit A Marked up Ordinance 42






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: February 4, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 43, APPROVING CHANGES TO RATES AND FEES 
BY RESOLUTION 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt, by reading of title only, Ordinance 43 which 
authorizes the Board to approve District water charges by resolution.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District currently approves water rates and fees (water rates) by ordinance which 
requires an introduction at a public meeting, adoption at the next meeting, and then the 
rates become effective 30 days after adoption.  Concurrent with that process is the 
Proposition 218 process which requires noticing of all property owners 45 days prior to 
consideration of new water rates with a required public hearing, and the budget 
process, which is a multi-month effort, as well, and is the deliberation that determines 
whether there is a financial reason for changing water rates.  The District currently 
coordinates the Prop 218 process with a water rate ordinance by combining the Prop 
218 public hearing with the introduction of the water rates ordinance.  In that manner 
two required public hearings are served at one meeting.  This requires that the budget 
must be completed prior to these public hearings – water rates are based on budget 
requirements.  Coordinating the three processes is a challenge and the multi step 
ordinance procedure does not serve our customers in any significant way.   
 
Many water agencies – water districts and cities – approve water rates by resolution.  
Resolutions require only one meeting, the approved action become effective 
immediately, and the procedure, needing only one meeting, is easier to coordinate with 
Prop 218 and the budget process.   
 
The District Policies and Procedures is silent on the rate approval process but there are 
water rate and charges-related policies scattered in a number of different locations in 
the 3000’s section of the Policies and Procedures.  The attached Ordinance 43 
introduces a new section 3900 in which the recommended approval process will be 
located and, with the Policy and Procedures cleanup, into which existing appropriate 
water charges-related policies will be migrated. 
   
Staff recommend adoption of Ordinance 43.  Coordination with Prop 218 will be easier, 
the budget process will have one more month, if needed, and the public will be served 
at an equal, if not better, way.   







ORDINANCE NO. 43 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADDING  
POLICY NUMBER 3900 TO THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES 


ALLOWING WATER RATES TO BE SET BY RESOLUTION 
 
  
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code §31007, Sweetwater Springs Water District ("District") 
is authorized to establish rates and charges ("Rates") sufficient to pay for operating 
expenses, provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and 
interest on debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code §31025, the District Board of Directors ("Board") is 
authorized to fix Rates, and through its General Manager collect fees necessary to operate 
and maintain District services based on those Rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, although the Board has historically adopted Rates for the provision of water 
services through the adoption of ordinances, there is no requirement that it do so; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is more expeditious and in the best interest of 
the District to establish Rates through the adoption of resolutions, in accordance with all 
applicable laws governing the establishment of, and changes to, such Rates, including 
without limitation, water capacity charges, connection fees, standby charges, and rates for 
the production, treatment and delivery of water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board introduced this ordinance at the January 7, 2010 Board meeting. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
Section 1. Policy Number 3900, Charges for District Services, of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District Policy & Procedures is hereby added as follows:  
 
3900.10.  Approval of Charges for District Services by Resolution.   Rates and charges 
that are necessary or appropriate to operate and maintain the District, including rates and 
charges that are collected for providing water service and for repaying debt service, may be 
set by a duly adopted resolution, in accordance with and pursuant to all applicable laws 
governing the establishment of, and changes to, such rates and charges unless otherwise 
required to be adopted by ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  The Board declares that the operation and maintenance costs incurred by the 
District for production, treatment and distribution of potable water are not excessive and are 
directly related to actual cost of providing water service to District customers.   The Board 
also declares that the fees and charges set for repaying loans incurred for capital projects 
are directly related to the repayment of those loans.   All residential, public, commercial and 
industrial customers receiving water service from the District shall pay Rates as established 







Ordinance No. 43. Approval of Rates by Resolution 2 
February 4, 2010 


and fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board at a Board meeting in accordance with 
applicable laws. 


Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause of phrase of this Ordinance is for 
any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  The Board 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 
Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was adopted this 4th day of February, 2010, on roll call by the following 
vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Wanda Smith:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item III-E - ApprovingRatesbyResolution

		Item III-E.1 ORD 43 - Approval of Rates by Resolution






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
 Meeting Date: February 4, 2010 
 
 Subject:  Resolution 10-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2009 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 10-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


(Preparation of the FY 2008-09 Audit cost $6,700.00.) 
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


Our FY 2008-09 Audit was prepared by Michael Celentano, CPA.  Mr. Celentano will be available by 
telephone to answer any questions you have about the Audit. 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 10-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2009.  
 







Resolution No. 10-01 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING THE FINAL AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL 


YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2009 
 


 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District is required to have annual 
audits performed relative to the spending of public funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Michael Celentano, CPA, provides said auditing service and is 
under contract with the District to perform such audits; 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the audit as prepared by the Michael 
Celentano, CPA, for the year ending June 30, 2009, and accepts the information 
contained therein. 
 
 
This Resolution was adopted this 4th day of February, 2010, on roll call by the following 
vote:  
 
  Jim Quigley    
  Gaylord Schaap   
  Victoria Wikle    
  Wanda Smith    
  Sukey Robb-Wilder   
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 













































































































		Item V-A - Accepting the FY 2008-09 Audit

		(Preparation of the FY 2008-09 Audit cost $6,700.00.)



		Item V-A.1 - RES 10-01 -- Accepting Audit for FYE June 30, 2009

		Item V-A.2 - FY 2008-09 AUDIT final






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MID-YEAR ADJUSTMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2009-
2010 OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approval of Resolution 10-2 which approves a mid-year 
adjustment to the FY10 Operating and Capital Budget 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  no impact 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District’s FY 2009-2010 Budget was approved at the May 7, 2009 Board Meeting.  
Since that time the District has received a significant grant from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency which provides $899,250 for funding the District’s 2010 capital 
projects, CIP IV-B, Project 1 which includes the Schoolhouse and Upper Schoolhouse 
tanks, improvements to the water mains on Riverlands Road and Bonita Terrace, and 
replacement of the feed line at the Handy Andy Booster Pump.  Staff feels this provides 
such a substantial change in the District’s budget that a formal mid-year adjustment to 
the budget is appropriate.  Other significant changes since approval of the budget is the 
addition of the Bonita Terrace element to CIP IV-B, Project 1, which was added in 
September 2009 and adoption of a formal District Reserve Policy. 
 
The attached Exhibit A shows the Capital portion of the District’s Mid-Year Adjusted 
Budget.  There are no proposed changes to the Operating Budget, and so that 
portion is identical to the adopted budget and is not shown in Exhibit A.   The areas 
of the budget affected by the grant funding addition are highlighted in yellow.  The 
major change is the addition of $899,250 in the revenue section.  That change then 
affects several other rows, including the Private Placement Loan (PPL) rows because 
less of the PPL will be used.   
 
Other mid-year adjustments include: 
 


• District Funds balances are updated based on FY 09 end-of-year actual 
balances. 


 
• Carryover funding of CIP IV-A which was started in FY09, but completed this 


fiscal year is shown. 







Approval of FY10 Mid-Year Budget Adjustment 2  
February 4, 2009 


 
• District Policy Reserves are updated using the Reserve Policy adopted in 


September 2009 which uses a different formula than what was used for the 
budget adopted in May 2009.  The principal changes are that the operating 
reserves are based on expenses instead of revenues and a reserve for debt 
repayment was added.   


 
Approving Resolution 10-2 will have no impact on District finances – District funds 
are what they are.  The mid-year adjusted budget does give a more accurate picture 
of what the District is actually doing and what the District’s financial condition should 
be at the end of this fiscal year.  For examples, because of the CDC grant and the 
other changes, Reserves above District Policy are budgeted to end the year at 
$2,567,193 instead of $2,073,751, and the PPL ending balance is budgeted at 
$1,205,250 instead of $940,399. 
 
This is a first time for the District doing a midyear adjustment to its budget.  However, 
the financial changes since the adoption of the budget last May are significant and 
should be recognized through the formal action of approving Resolution 10-2.  This will 
allow more meaningful analysis of the District’s financial status and progress.  In the 
future mid-year budget adjustments will be considered in concert with the second 
quarter variance review as is being done this year. 
 
 
 
 


 







Resolution No. 10-2 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE REVISED FY 2009-10 


OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET  
  
 


WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District Board of Directors adopted 
the District’s FY 2009-2010 Budget on May 7, 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, significant financial changes, such as the acquisition of a large 
grant from the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency for construction of CIP IV-B, 
have occurred; and 
 


WHEREAS, revising the District’s FY 2009-2010 Budget at mid fiscal year will 
provide better financial guidance and information for the District Board, staff and public. 


 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District hereby adopts the attached revised FY 2009-10 
Operating and Capital Improvement Budget and authorizes the General Manager to 
submit the attached budget to the Sonoma County Auditor. 
 


      
 


This Resolution was adopted this 4th day of February, 2010, on roll call by the following 
vote:  
 
  Jim Quigley    
  Gaylord Schaap   
  Victoria Wikle    
  Wanda Smith    
  Sukey Robb-Wilder   
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 







Exhibit A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2009-2010


Revised February 4, 2010


1


FY 08-09 
Revised


FY 08-09 
Actual


FY 09-10
BUDGET


FY 09-10
Mid-Year 
Revision Comments


CAPITAL BUDGET


REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 27,000               23,497 27,000                  27,000                
Annual Assessment (County) 710,000             704,304 710,000                710,000              
Prior Year Assessment 40,000               45,110 40,000                  40,000                
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 170,500             170,000 252,426                252,426              
Interest 60,000               95,156 95,000                  95,000                
Federal Grants  -                        -                     
Neeley Road Slide claim reimbursement  -                        -                     
County Reimb. for FEMA Viaduct Project 51,483               -                        -                     
Cal Trans Reimb. For Culvert Project 80,000               82,856 -                        -                     
CDC Grants, CIP IV-A, Projects 1 and 2 983,500             545,780
CDC Grants, CIP IV-A FY09 Carryover 437,720              FY09 carryover
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 899,250              CDC Grant approved
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 30,000                design reimbursement
Private Placement Funding (FY09 Carryover) 222,945              PPL FY09 Carryover
Private Placement Funding (CIP IV-B) 983,500             1,363,536 1,052,000             438,750              CDC grant, Bonita Terrace
Transfers to CIRF from Operations 199,500             200,000 280,000                280,000              
Transfers to State Loans from Operations -                    -                        -                     
Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operations 25,000               25,000 25,000                  25,000                
TOTAL REVENUE 3,330,483          3,255,239          2,481,426             3,458,091           


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 687,000             684,058 687,000                687,000              
State Loan Payments 170,300             170,172 170,300                170,300              
Loan to Neeley Road Slide claim  
Private Placement Loan 185,000             117,007 234,013                234,013              


TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,042,300          971,236             1,091,313             1,091,313           


Guerne Way Improvements
Tank/Facilities Improvements


1,100


CIP III 35,000               35,000 50,000                  50,000                
CIP IV-A 1,967,000          1,306,335


CIP IV-A, FY09 Carryover 660,665              CIP IV-A carryover
CIP IV-B, Project 1 69,601 1,052,000             1,328,000           added Bonita Terrace
CIP IV-B, Project 2 40,000                design and mgmt
Crespo Tank Replacement Project
In-House Construction Projects 75,000               57,472 40,000                  40,000                
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,119,300          2,440,744          2,233,313             3,209,978           
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 211,183             814,495             248,113                248,113              


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Balance 200,000             200,000             200,000                200,000              


Budget Reserve (10%) 207,736             207,736             218,332                158,770              New Policy, based
Economic Reserve (15%) 311,605             311,605             327,498                238,155              on Operating
Debt Repayment Reserve 238,155              expenses
Capital Reserve 250,000             250,000             250,000                250,000              


TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,485,782          3,372,311          2,765,731             3,652,274           09 Actual, CDC grant
   Total District Policy 969,341             969,341             995,830                1,085,081           


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,316,441          2,202,970          1,569,902             2,367,193           


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF 944,491             1,606,129          1,192,604             1,854,242           09 Actual, CDC grant
OPERATING RESERVE 225,000             225,000             225,000                225,000              


OPERATIONS 594,562             770,352             612,751                788,541              revised off 09 Actual
CD 572,949             573,223             601,597                601,884              revised off 09 Actual
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 87,929               121,757             72,929                  106,757              revised off 09 Actual
BUILDING 60,850               75,850               60,850                  75,850                revised off 09 Actual


DISTRICT LOANS
PPL 1,992,399          1,867,255          940,399                1,205,560           CDC grant


y
("S"Curves" y
relocation - Cal 
main relocation - 





		Item V-B - MidYear RevFY2009-2010 Budget

		Item V-B.1 - RES 10-02 Appr Revised FY 09-10 budget

		Item V-B.2 - Revised FY10 O&C Budget 

		Combined (RevFY10)








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: February 4, 2010 
  
Subject: Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru December 31, 2009 (50%) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
OPERATIONS 
 
2Q Revenue is ahead of budgeted figures.   
 
Total Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, remains slightly more than budgeted 
(53.37%) even though the Capital Debt Reduction Charge portion of Water Sales was less 
than anticipated.  Water Sales are typically higher in the first half of the fiscal year due to 
seasonal weather fluctuations.  Construction New Services and Upgrades revenue are under 
budget.   
 
2Q Expenditures are higher than budgeted. 
 
2Q expenditures are slightly higher than budgeted (52.38%).  As was noted last quarter, 
certain expenses are paid for in full at the beginning of the fiscal year or end of the calendar 
year.  There was also an unbudgeted expense during the second quarter for the El Bonita 
well rehabilitation ($12,076).  This rehab was slated for FY 2010-11 but was done this fiscal 
year due to a leak in the well piping that needed to be fixed but also included the same 
mobilization that would be needed for the rehab work.  
 
For more detail, please refer to the attached Table 1.  Actual vs. Budgeted - Operations 
breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
 
CAPITAL 
 







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru December 31, 2009 (50%)    2  
February 4, 2010 


Table 2. Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2009-10 Capital Program Budget Variances 
as of December 31, 2009 (50%) shows the mid-year capital revenues and expenses 
compared to the budget approved in May 2009 and the mid-year adjustment that is to be 
considered in Agenda Item V-B.   
 
The major items of interest are the approval of the $899,250 grant from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B, Project 1 and the carryover revenue and expenses for 
CIP IV-A.  CIP IV-A came in very close to expected by the end of the 2nd quarter.  
One check was not issued by the end of this reporting period and it was $86,872.  
CIP IV-B has not started yet and some portion of the expenses and grant 
reimbursements will carry over into FY11.   


 
 







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.1. 2· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 113,390 252,426 -139,036 44.92%
4031.1 · Daily Water Sales Deposits 979,880 1,796,092 -816,212 54.56%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,093,270 2,048,518 -955,248 53.37% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,093,270 2,048,518 -955,248 53.37%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 0.0%  
1700 · Interest 20,521 50,000 -29,479 41.04% Reflects interest earnings thru 2Q
3600 · Construction New Services 2,166 6,000 -3,834 36.1%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 100 2,000 -1,900 5.0%
4032 · Rent 40,106 74,600 -34,494 53.76%  
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 2,730 2,200 530 124.07%  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 65,623 134,800 -69,177 48.68%


Total Income 1,158,893 2,183,318 -1,024,425 53.08%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 346,204 687,229 -341,025 50.38%
5912 · Overtime 12,917 33,000 -20,083 39.14%
5916 · On-Call Pay 13,435 26,436 -13,001 50.82%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 16,640 32,000 -15,361 52.0%  


Total Salary 389,195 778,665 -389,470 49.98%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monie -2,229 0 -2,229 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 48,422 98,797 -50,375 49.01%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 5,402 14,006 -8,604 38.57%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 56,701 116,715 -60,014 48.58%
5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 17,576 34,069 -16,493 51.59%


Total Benefits 125,872 263,587 -137,715 47.75%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 515,067 1,042,252 -527,185 49.42%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 767 1,800 -1,033 42.6%
6040-C · Cell Phones 1,212 3,100 -1,888 39.11%
6040-LD · Long Distance 270 700 -430 38.61%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 363 900 -537 40.34%
6040-S · SCADA software maint. 499 0 499 100.0%
6040-T · Telephones 6,217 12,000 -5,783 51.81%


Total Communications 9,328 18,500 -9,172 50.42%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 41,444  50,000 -8,556 82.89% Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year
6102 · Auto/Equipment 4,682  17,600 -12,918 26.61% Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year


Total Insurances 46,126 67,600 -21,474 68.23%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2009 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 3







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2009 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 2,763 12,000 -9,237 23.02%   
6151 · Office Maintenance 3,615 10,700 -7,085 33.79%


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 6,378 22,700 -16,322 28.1%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 3,423 6,700 -3,277 51.09%
6180 · Distribution System Repairs 22,278 70,000 -47,722 31.83%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 51,419 45,000 6,419 114.26%


In the 1Q, an unbudgeted rehab of MR Well
5 ($13,902) will leave this line item 
underbudgeted for the year.  Also this 
quarter, two large maintenance projects 
were done: (1) replace pump/motor for MR 
Well 4 ($7295) and (2) Video of El Bonita 
Well 5 ($9446).  In the 2Q, the El Bonita 
Well Rehab -- slated for FY 2010-11 -- 
became necessary this year at an 
unbudgeted cost of $12,076.


*


6143 · Generator Maintenance 0 3,000 -3,000 0.0%  


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 77,120 124,700 -47,580 61.84%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 3,829 5,100 -1,271 75.08%  
6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 14,178 12,000 2,178 118.15%


1Q expense includes water system fees,
paid twice yearly.  Always hard to predict, 
system fees were higher than anticipated 
this year, leaving this line item 
underbudgeted.


 
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 18,007 18,600 -593 96.81%


Office Expense
6410 · Postage 6,166 17,000 -10,834 36.27%


6430 · Printing Expense 4,427 5,250 -823 84.32%


Bills and envelopes are purchased in yearly 
quantities.  Unbudgeted costs of meter 
reading pages ($497), Auto-pay bills (app. 
$250), tag books (app. $900), and other 
smaller print jobs will leave this line item 
underbudgeted for the year.


*
6461 · Office Supplies 2,136 7,000 -4,864 30.52%
6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 759 1,000 -241 75.91%
6890 · Computers/Software 1,094 1,950 -856 56.1%
6579 · Furniture 664 1,000 -336 66.44%


Total Office Expense 15,247 33,200 -17,953 45.92%


Operating Supplies
6300 · Chemicals 13,191 14,800 -1,609 89.13%  
6880 · Tools and Equipment 2,350 5,500 -3,150 42.73%
6881 · Safety Equipment 812 2,000 -1,188 40.58%


Total Operating Supplies 16,353 22,300 -5,947 73.33%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 1,255 2,600 -1,345 48.26%  
6521 · County charges 325 1,500 -1,175 21.64%  
6587 · County LAFCO charges 4,761 4,700 61 101.3% Bill is pd yearly and is paid for the year
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 4,030 8,500 -4,470 47.41%


 Page 2 of 3







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2009 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6570 · Consultant Fees 8,938 25,000 -16,062 35.75%   
6590 · Engineering 83 2,000 -1,918 4.13%  


6610 · Legal 11,332 20,000 -8,668 56.66%
In the 1Q and 2Q, the Berry/Korbel litigation 
and the cell tower negotiations are leaving 
legal expenses slightly overbudget.


*
6630 · Audit/Accounting 12,141 18,000 -5,859 67.45%  


Total Professional Services 42,864 82,300 -39,436 52.08%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 870 2,000 -1,130 43.5%
6840 · Building & Warehouse 15,750 27,000 -11,250 58.33%   


Total Rents & Leases 16,620 29,000 -12,380 57.31%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 502 4,500 -3,998 11.16%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 11,146 16,800 -5,654 66.35%


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 2,724 6,360 -3,636 42.84%
  


Total Transportation & Travel 14,373 27,660 -13,287 51.96%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 425 1,330 -905 31.94%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,215 1,200 15 101.26% T-shirts are purchased once yearly
6021.4 · Jackets 272 360 -88 75.43%


Total Uniforms 1,911 2,890 -979 66.14%


Utilities
7320 · Electric and Propane 52,314 96,000 -43,686 54.49%  


Total Utilities 52,314 96,000 -43,686 54.49%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 316,640 545,450 -228,810 58.05%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 831,708 1,587,702 -755,994 52.38%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES
8517 · Field/office equipment 5,630 5,000 630 112.61%


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 5,630 5,000 630 112.61%


Total Expense 837,338 1,592,702 -755,364 52.57%


Net Ordinary Income 321,555 590,616 -269,061 54.44%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 252,426 -252,426 0.0%
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 0 280,000 -280,000 0.0%
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 0 572,426 -572,426 0.0%


 Page 3 of 3







 Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Capital Program Budget Variances as of December 31, 2009 (50%)


FY 09-10
ACTUAL


FY 09-10
BUDGET


FY 09-10
REVISED 
BUDGET


$ Over 
Revised 


Budget for 
Year


% of 
Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 10,993 27,000 27,000 -16,007 40.7%
Annual Assessment (County) 321,609 710,000 710,000 -388,391 45.3%
Prior Year Assessment 19,257 40,000 40,000 -20,743 48.1%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 252,426 252,426 -252,426 0.0% Transfer from Operations
Interest 17,502 95,000 95,000 -77,498 18.4%  
Cal Trans Reimb. For Culvert Project 52,547 0 0 52,547 NA Received in 1st Q


CDC Grants, CIP IV-A, FY09 carryover 399,105 0 437,720 -38,615 91.2%
Reimbursements for FY09 CIP IV-A, 
carried over into FY10


CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 899,250 -899,250 0.0% CDC Grant Approved


CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 30,000 -30,000 0.0%
Reimbursements for CIP IV-B, Project 2 
design


572,127 222,945 349,182 256.6%


57,920 1,052,000 438,750
-380,830 13.2%


CDC Grant, Bonita Terrace, FY09 
Carryover


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 0 280,000 280,000 -280,000 0.0% End of year transfer, CDRC subtracted 


0 25,000 25,000 -25,000 0.0%


TOTAL REVENUE 1,451,060 2,481,426 3,458,091 -2,007,031 42.0%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 448,688 687,000 687,000 -238,312 65.3%
State Loan Payments 85,086 170,300 170,300 -85,214 50.0%
Private Placement Loan 117,007 234,014 234,014 -117,007 50.0% 1st of 2 payments made
CIP III 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 100.0% Settlement payment


CIP IV-A 572,127 0 660,665
-88,538 86.6%


CIP IV-A, Project 1 completed; Project 2 
started in May, carried over into FY10


CIP IV-B, Project 1 57,920 1,052,000 1,328,000       -1,270,080 4.4% Added Bonita Terrace
CIP IV-B, Project 2 40,000 -40,000 0.0% Anticipate design costs
In-House Construction Projects 10,977 40,000 40,000 -29,023 27.4%


TOTAL EXPENSES 1,341,804 2,233,314 3,209,979 -1,868,175 41.8%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 109,255  248,112 248,112 -138,857 44.0%


Private Placement Funding (CIP IV-B)


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


Private Placement Funding (FY09 
Carryover)





		Item V-C - Staff report re Actual v Budgeted - 2Q 2009-10

		Item V-C.1 - Budget variances as of 12-31-2009 (50%)

		Sheet1 (2)



		Item V-C.2  - Budget Variances - Cap Imp - FY 09-10 2Q

		Revised








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 4, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  TWO-YEAR BUDGET/CIP COORDINATION   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the prospects of switching to a 
two-year budget and coordinating that with the District’s Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the January meeting the concept of a two-year budget process was discussed, 
commented upon favorably, and forwarded to the ad hoc Budget Committee for 
further deliberation.  District staff have had internal discussions on this concept and 
believe we should settle the direction early in the budget process.  The biggest 
current issue with this concept is coordination with the District’s CIP. 
 
As a beginning related item, the Board asked me to inquire further with Sonoma 
County Redevelopment Agency staff on the possibility of current FY 2012 CIP project 
on Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard Lane near the end of Drake 
Road, which is outside the Redevelopment Agency boundaries, being funded by a 
Redevelopment grant.  I have been informed that the standard for funding of 
projects outside RDA boundaries is that the project needs to principally benefit the 
area within the RDA boundaries.   This project would not meet that standard and 
thus, it is unlikely to be appropriate for RDA funding assistance. 
 
The basic elements of a two year budget cycle (subject to discussion, of course) 
include: 
 


• This is the correct year to start a two year cycle (odd fiscal years (FY 2010-
2011 and FY 2011-2012) because newly elected directors should have a year 
to get acclimated to and informed about District activities and budgeting 
needs.  


 
• CIP should be updated as part of two-year budget, but we didn’t do it this 


year – we’re off the cycle.  Coordinating the CIP with two-year budgeting is 
one of the benefits of doing two-year budgets.   


 
• CIP needs to be coordinated with RDA funding possibilities and next year is 


too soon and waiting three years may be too long.  
 







TWO-YEAR BUDGET/CIP COORDINATION  2 
February 4, 2010 


 


Because of the desire to coordinate budgeting with CIP review, the need to 
coordinate both with the possibility of future RDA funding assistance for the CIP, and 
the extra effort staff would need to put forth this year to start the two-year 
budgeting process, staff would like to postpone the start of two-year budgeting for 
two years – until January 2012 for FY 2012-2013 and FY 2013-2014.    By that time 
we can switch the CIP review to that schedule and will be in a position to coordinate 
our RDA funding assistance requests with the two-year budgeting and CIP review.  
Until that time we propose to continue with one-year budgets, review of the CIP next 
year, and funding assistance requests to the RDA and RRROC as appropriate.       
 
 


Table 1.  FY 2010-2011 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  January 7, 2010 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2010 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 4, 2010 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 22, 2010 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 1, 2010 


Approve Budget 
• Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary 


May 6, 2010 


 





		Meeting Date: February 4, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 4, 2010  
 
Subject:  REQUEST FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND 
INSPECTION SERVICES FOR CIP IV-B  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 10-3 which authorizes the 
General Manager to execute an agreement with Brelje and Race to provide 
construction management and inspection services for CIP IV-B.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The estimated cost based on the amount of work and the 
Brelje and Race fee schedule is $277,000 with an allowance of $10,000 for extra 
or changed work to be approved by the express direction or permission of the 
General Manager.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District is moving forward with construction of CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2 
(Table 1).  Project 1 is being advertised with award of bid expected at the March 
Board meeting.  Project 2 is anticipated to start in July 2010.  Construction 
management and inspection services are needed for successful completion of 
the projects.  It has been the District’s practice to have engineering consulting 
firms do this work.   
 
We have received a proposal for Brelje and Race for the construction 
management and inspection services for these projects (Exhibit A with 
Resolution 10-3).  The cost estimated in the proposal is $277,000 and there is 
also a provision for extra services up to $10,000.  The District currently has a 
design contract with Brelje and Race (B&R) for design of CIP IV-B, and B&R did 
the construction management and inspection services for CIP IV-A with a 
contract that was competitively bid through a request for proposals process.  
The proposal submitted by B&R for CIP IV-B is consistent with the CIP IV-A 
contract in scope and estimated cost and the services provided through that 
contract were excellent.      
 
Of note, the proposal submitted by B&R includes adding SCADA (Supervisory 
Control and Data Acquisition) monitoring at Harrison Tank.  This tank is in the 
proximity of the Schoolhouse Tanks to be constructed as part of CIP IV-B and 
which will have SCADA work done to include them into the District’s SCADA 
system.  The Harrison Tank currently has no SCADA and it makes sense to have 
this tank also included into the District system at this time.  We do not have a 
cost estimate at this time but expect it to be in the $40,000 range.    We do not 







CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR CIP IV-B   
February 4, 2009  2 


 


expect the addition of this work to increase the total bid price of Project 1 above 
the estimated Project 1 cost in Table 1.  We will work with CDC staff to ensure 
that this add on is eligible for funding assistance under the RDA grant. 
 
Staff recommend approval of Resolution 10-3.  The construction management 
and engineering services proposal received from B&R, a qualified engineering 
firm that has done good work for the District in the past and is very familiar with 
the work needed for CIP IV-B, shows an appropriate effort level and staff billing 
rates consistent with the CIP IV-A contract.   
 


Table 1.  CIP IV-B 
Year Projects Estimated Cost
2010  CIP IV-B, Project 1   


  


Schoolhouse Tank and Upper Schoolhouse Tank (MR) – 
Construct a storage tank with a capacity of 
approximately 65,000 gallons at the top of Bonita 
Terrace, install a booster station, and connect with 
replacement reservoir at Upper Schoolhouse site.  $638,000 


  


Bonita Terrace (MR) - Replace 1,500 ft of existing main 
and appurtenances on Bonita Terrace, including ties to 
Schoolhouse Tank and  Delta Way (CIP IV-A), to create a 
loop. $238,000 


  


Riverlands Road (GV) - Replace 1,600 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances in Riverlands Road, including 
two ties at Drake Road to create a loop. $393,000 


  


Handy Andy Booster Feed Line (GV) – Replace 300 lf of 
existing main between Hwy 116 and the booster pump 
at Old Monte Rio Road. $59,000 


     
  2010 -  CIP IV-B, Project 1 Total $1,328,000 
  75% CDC/RRROC Funding Amount $899,250 
2011   CIP IV-B, Project 2  


  


Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets (MR) – On River 
Blvd, Alder Rd., Willow Rd., and Railroad Ave., replace 
existing mains and appurtenances with approximately 
6,000 lf of 6-inch water main, to complete loop.   $1,515,000 


     
  2011 - CIP IV-B, Project 2 Total $1,515,000 
  75% CDC/RRROC Funding Amount $1,095,000 
  Total CDC/RRROC Funding Amount for CIP IV-B $1,994,250 
 District Funding Amount for CIP IV-B $848,750
 Total Estimated Cost of CIP IV-B $2,843,000


 







RESOLUTION 10-3 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR CIP IV-B, PROJECTS 1 AND 2, 


AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN  
 


WHEREAS, the consulting engineering firm of Brelje and Race is under contract 
to the District for design services for CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2; and 


 
WHEREAS, Brelje and Race has performed well in doing construction 


management and inspection services in past projects for the District, including recently 
for CIP IV-A; and  


 
 WHEREAS, CIP IV-B consists of the following elements: 


• Schoolhouse Tank and Upper Schoolhouse Tank 
• Riverlands Road (GV) - Replace 1,600 lf 
• Bonita Terrace – replace 1,500 lf 
• Handy Andy Booster Feed Line (GV) – Replace 300 lf of existing main 
• Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets (MR) – replace existing mains and 


appurtenances with approximately 6,000 lf of 6-inch water main; and 
 


WHEREAS, the CIP IV-B projects have a total estimated cost of $2,843,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, Brelje and Race has submitted a proposal for all elements of CIP IV-


B with a projected cost of $277,000 to perform the construction management and 
inspection services, and the work effort and staff rate schedule are consistent with the 
recent CIP IV-A  construction management and inspection services contract ; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is appropriate to include an allowance of $10,000 for extra or 
changed work that may be authorized only by express permission or direction by the 
General Manager. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The Phase IV-B Water Distribution Project Agreement for construction management 
and inspection services with Brelje and Race, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, is hereby approved in the sum of $277,000 with an extra services allowance 
of $10,000; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 







Resolution 10-3. CIP IV-B Agreement for Engineering Services with Brelje and Race 
February 4, 2010           2 
 


 


I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
February 4, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
 
 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 







 
 
 
 


AGREEMENT FOR  
CONSULTING CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 


AND INSPECTION SERVICES 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PHASE IV-B 


 
 
The following is an Agreement dated as of February 4, 2010 by and between the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Brelje & Race, hereinafter 
referred to as “CONSULTANT”. 
 


RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents to DISTRICT that it is a duly qualified firm 
experienced in construction management and inspection of projects involving the construction of 
water pipelines, storage tanks and other water facilities; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of DISTRICT, it is necessary and 
desirable to employ the services of CONSULTANT for construction management and inspection 
services associated with SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PHASE IV-B, Projects 1 and 2, in the Guerneville and Monte Rio 
areas of Sonoma County (Table 1 in Exhibit A).  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 
 


AGREEMENT 
 
 1. Services.  This Agreement is consummated for the purpose of performing 
construction management and inspection services associated with the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PHASE IV-B, Projects 
1 and 2, (as listed in Table 1 of Exhibit A, attached),  in the Guerneville and Monte Rio areas of 
Sonoma County.  


 
  1.1  Scope of Services. In accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to perform all services described in the Scope of Work 
attached as Exhibit A, with respect to Projects 1 and 2 as listed in Table 1 of Exhibit A.  In the 
event of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A, this 
Agreement shall prevail. 







1.2 Performance Standard.  CONSULTANT shall perform all work hereunder 
in a manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care normally observed by a 
person practicing in CONSULTANT’s profession.  If DISTRICT determines that any of 
CONSULTANT’s work is not in accordance with such level of competency and standard of care, 
DISTRICT, in its sole discretion and in addition to any other remedies provided herein or by law, 
shall have the right to do any or all of the following: 
 


a. Require CONSULTANT to meet with DISTRICT to review the Quality of 
the work and resolve matters of concern; 


b. Require CONSULTANT to repeat the work at no additional charge until it 
is satisfactory to the DISTRICT; or 


c. Terminate this Agreement in accordance with the provision of Section 4 
herein. 


 
1.3 Key Personnel.  The parties hereto acknowledge that the availability of 


John S. Locey and Brent Beazor of Brelje & Race were a material inducement to DISTRICT to 
enter into this Agreement, and without whose services DISTRICT would not have entered into 
this Agreement. 
 
  CONSULTANT shall not remove, replace, or substitute for Mr. Locey or Mr. 
Beazor without the prior written consent of DISTRICT. 
 
  1.4 Assigned Personnel.  CONSULTANT shall assign only competent 
personnel to perform the work hereunder.  In the event that at any time DISTRICT, in its sole 
discretion, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by CONSULTANT to perform 
work hereunder, CONSULTANT shall remove such person or persons immediately upon 
receiving notice from DISTRICT. 
 
 2. Payment. 
 
  2.1 Notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary herein, for performance of 
the Services (including, without limitation, all tools, equipment, labor, supplies, supervision and 
materials), DISTRICT agrees to pay, and CONSULTANT agrees to accept compensation for 
salary expenses in accordance with the Schedule of Rates specified in Exhibit B attached hereto 
and incorporated herein, and for non-salary expenses in accordance with Section 2.2, provided, 
however, that the total sum of all costs shall not exceed  $171,000 for Tasks 1 thru 12 for Project 
1 and $106,000 for Project 2, as provided in Section 1.1 of this Agreement, and additional 
compensation as authorized by the DISTRICT’s General Manager for tasks performed pursuant 
to Section 12 of this Agreement in an amount not to exceed an additional $10,000.  Billing rates 
for labor categories in Exhibit B cover all salary-related costs including, without limitation, 
salary, fringe benefits, overhead, and profit. 
 


2.2 CONSULTANT may request remaining funds from completed Project 1 
to be redistributed to Project 2.  DISTRICT General Manager may approve redistribution of 
funds between Project 1 and 2 upon written request by CONSULTANT. 
 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 2 February 4, 2010 







2.3 Monthly invoices shall be submitted by CONSULTANT.  They shall 
identify the number of hours for the period, by job classification, time spent on each task, the 
percent of each task complete during the period, and total percent of each task completed. 
 
  2.4 DISTRICT shall make monthly payments based on invoices received, for 
services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. 
 
  2.5 All payments will be made in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall commence in accordance 
with Section 8 below and CONSULTANT shall complete Tasks 1 through 11 prior to 12/31/10 
unless otherwise extended by the DISTRICT. 
 
 4. Termination.  At any time and without cause, DISTRICT shall have the right in its 
sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving ten (10) days prior written notice to 
CONSULTANT.  In the event of such termination, DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT for 
services satisfactorily rendered to such date.  If CONSULTANT should fail to perform any of its 
obligations hereunder, within the time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violate 
any of the terms of this Agreement, DISTRICT may immediately terminate this Agreement by 
giving CONSULTANT written notice of such termination, stating the reason for such 
termination.  In such event, CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive payment for all services 
satisfactorily rendered, provided, however, that there shall be deducted from such amount the 
amount of damage, if any, sustained by DISTRICT by virtue of the breach of the Agreement by 
CONSULTANT.  For agreements where payment is based upon a lump sum in total or by 
individual task, payment for services satisfactorily rendered shall be an amount which bears the 
same ratio to the total fees specified in the Agreement as the services satisfactorily rendered 
hereunder by CONSULTANT bear to the total services otherwise required to be performed for 
such total fee, provided, however, that there shall be deducted from such amount the amount of 
damage, if any sustained by DISTRICT by virtue of the breach of the Agreement by 
CONSULTANT 
 


5. Options upon Breach by CONSULTANT.  If CONSULTANT materially 
breaches any of the terms of this Agreement, District’s remedies shall included, but not be 
limited to, the following: 


 
5.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 
 
5.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and 


any other work product prepared by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement; 
 
5.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by 


CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement; or 
 
5.4 Charge CONSULTANT the difference between the costs to complete the 


Services that are unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that District would have paid 
CONSULTANT pursuant to Section 2 if CONSULTANT had completed the work.  


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 3 February 4, 2010 







 
6. Indemnification.    
 


CONSULTANT shall to the fullest extent allowed by law, with respect to all 
services performed in connection with this Agreement, indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the District and its officials, commissioners, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims that arise out of, pertain to or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT 
will bear all losses, costs, damages, expense and liability of every kind, nature and 
description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such Claims, whether directly or 
indirectly (“Liabilities”).  Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnity the 
District shall not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused by the sole 
negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the District.  With respect to third 
party claims against the Consultant, the Consultant waives any and all rights of any type 
of express or implied indemnity against the District. 


 
The foregoing obligation of CONSULTANT shall not apply when (1) the injury, loss of 
life, damage to property, or violation of law arises wholly from the negligence or willful 
misconduct of the District or its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers and (2) the 
actions of CONSULTANT or its employees, subcontractor, or agents have contributed in 
no part to the injury, loss of life, damage to property, or violation of law.  It is understood 
that the duty of CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to 
defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.  Acceptance by District 
of insurance certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not 
relieve CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless 
clause.  This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or 
claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to 
apply.  By execution of this Agreement, CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 


 
 7. Insurance.  Before beginning any work under this Agreement, CONSULTANT, at 
its own cost and expense, shall procure and maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed 
below for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages 
to property, which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder 
by the CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 


7.1 Verification of Coverage 
 


a. Properly executed certified Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all 
coverage’s, limits and endorsements required above.  Said Certificates 
shall be submitted prior to the execution of the Agreement. 


 
b. Certified copies of the specified endorsements for each policy.  Said 


endorsement copies shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of execution 
of this Agreement. 


 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 4 February 4, 2010 







7.2 Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 


1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage 
(occurrence form CG 0001). 


 
2. Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/87) covering 


Automobile Liability, code 1 (any auto). 
 


3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California 
and Employer's Liability Insurance. 


 
4. Errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's 


profession. 
 


  7.3 Minimum Limits of Insurance.  CONSULTANT shall maintain limits no 
less than: 
 


a. General Liability:  $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance 
or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general 
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  


 
b. Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 


property damage. 
 
c. Employer's Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 
 
d. Professional Liability:  CONSULTANT shall maintain professional 


liability insurance for licensed professionals performing work in 
connection with this Agreement in an amount no less than $1,000,000 
combined single limit and $1,000,000 annual aggregate for claims made 
covering the professionals’ errors and omissions. CONSULTANT shall 
provide insurance covering claims made as a result of negligent 
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such insurance in effect 
for not less than two (2) years following completion of performance of this 
Agreement. 


 
e. Worker’s Compensation: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for 


the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the CONSULTANT, its agents, 
representatives, or employees.  The insurance must be endorsed to waive 
all rights of subrogation against the District and its officials, officers, 
employees, and volunteers for loss arising from or related to the Services. 


 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 5 February 4, 2010 







  7.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District.  At the option of the District, 
either:  the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as 
respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the CONSULTANT 
shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration and defense expenses. 
 
  7.5 All Policies Requirements.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions: 
 


a. The District shall be named as an additional insured.  The District, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as insured 
as respects:  liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of 
the CONSULTANT; products and completed operations of the 
CONSULTANT; premises owned, occupied or used by the 
CONSULTANT, or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 
CONSULTANT.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to the District, its officers, officials, 
employees, or volunteers. 


 
b. For any claims related to this project or the performance of the Services, 


the CONSULTANT's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as 
respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers.  
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers, 
officials, employees or volunteers shall be in excess of the 
CONSULTANT's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 


 
c. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies 


including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the 
District, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers. 


 
d. The CONSULTANT's insurance shall apply separately to each insured 


against whom claim is made or suit is bought, except with respect to the 
limits of the insurer's liability. 


 
e. A certified endorsement must be attached to all each insurance policy 


required by this clause stating that coverage suspended, voided, cancelled 
by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) 
days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the District.  


 
  7.4 Policy Obligations.  CONSULTANT’s indemnity and other obligations 
shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements. 
 
  7.5 Material Breach.  If CONSULTANT, for any reason, fails to maintain 
insurance coverage that is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 6 February 4, 2010 







material breach of contract.  DISTRICT, at its sole option, may terminate this Agreement and 
obtain damages from CONSULTANT resulting from said breach.  Alternatively, DISTRICT 
may purchase such required insurance coverage, and without further notice to CONSULTANT, 
DISTRICT may deduct from sums due to CONSULTANT any premium costs advanced by 
DISTRICT for such insurance.  These remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies 
available to DISTRICT. 
 
 8. Commencement of Work.  CONSULTANT is authorized to proceed with the 
performance of this Agreement upon date of issuance, by the DISTRICT’s General Manager, of 
written notice to proceed with the Services, and shall complete said performance in accordance 
with the time specified in this Agreement, provided, however, that if the scheduled performance 
is delayed by earthquake, flood, high water, other Act of God or by strike, lockout or similar 
labor disturbances, the time for CONSULTANT’s scheduled performance of this Agreement 
shall be extended by a number of days equal to the number of days the schedule has been 
delayed. 
 
 9. Extra or Changed Work.  Only the DISTRICT’s General Manager may authorize 
extra or changed work.  Failure of CONSULTANT to secure such a written authorization for 
extra or changed work shall constitute a waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the 
Agreement price or Agreement time due to such unauthorized work and thereafter 
CONSULTANT shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever for the performance of such 
work.  CONSULTANT further waivers any and all right or remedy by way of restitution or 
quantum merit for any and all extra work performed without such express and prior written 
authorization of the General Manager. 
 
 10. Representations and Warranties of CONSULTANT. 
 
  10.1 Standard of Care.  DISTRICT has relied upon the professional ability and 
training of CONSULTANT as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT hereby warrants that all Services will be performed in accordance with 
generally accepted professional practices and standards as well as the requirements of applicable 
federal, state and local laws, it being understood that acceptance of CONSULTANT’s Services 
by DISTRICT shall not operate as a waiver or release. 
 
  10.2 Status of CONSULTANT.  The parties intend that CONSULTANT, in 
performing the services hereinafter specified, shall act as an independent CONSULTANT and 
shall have control of the work and the manner in which it is performed.  CONSULTANT shall 
have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of the DISTRICT in any capacity 
whatsoever as an agent.  CONSULTANT is not to be considered an agent or employee of 
DISTRICT, and is not entitled to participate in any pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar 
benefits DISTRICT provides its employees.  In the event DISTRICT exercises its right to 
terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 4 above, CONSULTANT expressly agrees that it 
shall have no recourse or right of appeal under rules, regulations, ordinances, or laws applicable 
employees. 
 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 7 February 4, 2010 







  10.3 Taxes.  CONSULTANT agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay 
all applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and 
responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including, but no limited to, state and federal 
income and FICA taxes.  CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify and hold DISTRICT harmless 
from any liability which it may incur to the United States or to the State of California as a 
consequence of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay, when due, all such taxes and obligations.  In 
case DISTRICT is audited for compliance regarding any withholding or other applicable taxes, 
CONSULTANT agrees to furnish DISTRICT with proof of payment of taxes on these earnings.  
 
  10.4 Cost Disclosure.  In accordance with Government Code §7550, 
CONSULTANT agrees to state in a separate portion of its filed report, the numbers and amounts 
of all contracts and subcontracts relating to the preparation of the report. 
 


 10.5 Records Created As Part of CONSULTANT’s Performance.  All reports, 
data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, 
specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other 
form, that CONSULTANT prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the 
matters covered hereunder shall be the property of the District.  CONSULTANT hereby agrees 
to deliver those documents to the District upon termination of the Agreement.  It is understood 
and agreed that the documents and other materials, including but not limited to those described 
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the District and are not 
necessarily suitable for any future or other use.  District and CONSULTANT agree that, until 
final approval by District, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are 
confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both parties. 


 
10.6 Records Maintenance.  CONSULTANT shall keep and maintain full and 


complete documentation and accounting records concerning all services performed that are 
compassable under this Agreement and shall make such documents and records available to 
DISTRICT for inspection at any reasonable time.  CONSULTANT shall maintain such records 
for a period of not less than five (5) years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date 
of final payment to the CONSULTANT to this Agreement 
 


 10.7 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that Section 
10.6 of this Agreement requires CONSULTANT to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written 
request of the DISTRICT.  Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of 
public funds expended under this Agreement exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, 
at the request of DISTRICT or as part of any audit of the DISTRICT, for a period of three (3) 
years after final payment under the Agreement. 


 
10.8 Conflict of Interest.  CONSULTANT may serve other clients, but none 


whose activities within the corporate limits of DISTRICT or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place CONSULTANT in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the 
Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.   


 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 8 February 4, 2010 







CONSULTANT shall not employ any DISTRICT official in the work performed 
pursuant to this Agreement.  No officer or employee of DISTRICT shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 


 
CONSULTANT hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous 


twelve (12) months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the DISTRICT.  If 
CONSULTANT was an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the DISTRICT in the previous 
twelve (12) months, CONSULTANT warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the 
forming of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT understands that, if this Agreement is made in 
violation of Government Code §1090, et.seq., the entire Agreement is void and CONSULTANT 
will not be entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, 
including reimbursement of expenses, and CONSULTANT will be required to reimburse the 
DISTRICT for any sums paid to the CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT understands that, in 
addition to the foregoing, it may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government 
Code § 1090 and, if applicable, will be disqualified from holding public office in the State of 
California. 
 
  10.9 Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in 
employment because of race, creed, color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability 
or national origin.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with the provisions of Article II of Chapter 
19 of the Sonoma County Code, prohibiting discrimination in housing, employment, and services 
because of AIDS or HIV infection, during the term of this Agreement and any extension of the 
term. 
 
  10.10 Licenses and Permits.  CONSULTANT represents and warrants to District 
that CONSULTANT and its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to practice in 
their respective professions.  CONSULTANT  expressly represents and warrants that 
CONSULTANT and its employees, agents, and any subcontractors shall at their sole cost and 
expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, and 
approvals that are legally required to practice their respective professions. 
 
 11. Demands for Assurance.  Each party to this Agreement undertakes the obligation 
that the other’s expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired.  When reasonable 
grounds for insecurity arises with respect to the performance of either party, the other may in 
writing demand adequate assurance of due performance and, until the party receives such 
assurance may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed 
return has not been received.  “Commercially reasonable” includes not only the conduct of a 
party with respect to performance under this Agreement, but also conduct with respect to other 
agreements with parties to this Agreement or others.  After receipt of a justified demand, failure 
to provide within a reasonable time, but not exceeding thirty (30) days, such assurance of due 
performance as is adequate under the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this 
Agreement.  Acceptance of any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the 
aggrieved party’s right to demand adequate assurance of future performance. 
 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 9 February 4, 2010 







 12. Assignment.  Neither party hereto shall assign, delegate, sublet or transfer any 
interest in or duty under this Agreement without written consent of the other, and no assignment 
shall be of any force or affect whatsoever unless and until the other party shall have so 
consented.  CONSULTANT hereunder offers and agrees to assign to DISTRICT, and agrees to 
require its subcontractors to offer and agree to assign the DISTRICT, all rights, title, and interest 
in and to all causes of actions it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 USC Section 
15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with Section 16700] of Part 2 of 
Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services or 
materials pursuant to this contract or any subcontracts entered into hereunder.  This assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time DISTRICT tenders final payment to 
CONSULTANT, without further acknowledgement of the parties. 
 
 13. Ownership and Disclosure of Work Product.  DISTRICT shall be the owner of 
and shall be entitled to immediate possession of accurate reproducible copies of any design 
computations, plans, specifications, copies of correspondence, maps, or other pertinent data and 
information gathered or computed by CONSULTANT in the performance of and prior to 
termination of this Agreement by DISTRICT or upon completion of the work pursuant to this 
Agreement.  CONSULTANT may retain copies of the above-described documents but agrees not 
to disclose or discuss any information gathered, discovered, or generated in any way through this 
Agreement without the express written permission of DISTRICT, during the term of this 
Agreement and for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days following expiration of the term of 
the Agreement. 
 
 14. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 
  14.1 No Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by DISTRICT of any breach of any 
term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or 
provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise contained in this 
Agreement. 
 
  14.2 Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, 
ordinance, regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event any provision of 
this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, 
the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated.  Thereby, CONSULTANT and DISTRICT acknowledge that 
they have each contributed to the making of this Agreement and that, in the event of a dispute 
over the interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will not be construed 
against one party in favor of the other.  CONSULTANT and DISTRICT acknowledge that they 
have each had an adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and preparation 
of this Agreement. 
 
  14.3 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
be construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties. 
 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 10 February 4, 2010 







  14.4 Applicable Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed and 
interpreted according to the substantive law of California excluding the law of conflicts.  Any 
action to enforce the terms of this Agreement or for breach thereof shall be brought and tried in 
the County of Sonoma. 
 
  14.5 Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of 
reference.  They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or 
interpretation. 
 
  14.6 Merger.  This writing, including all exhibits attached hereto, is intended 
both as the final expression of the Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the 
included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, 
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure §1856.  No modification of this Agreement shall 
be effective unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties. 
 
  14.7 Time of Essence.  Time is and shall be of the essence in this Agreement 
and of each and every provision contained in this Agreement. 
 


14.8 Notices.  Any written notice to CONSULTANT shall be sent to:   
 


 Brelje & Race 
 ATTENTION: John S. Locey 
 5570 Skylane Blvd.   Phone: (707) 576-1322 
 Santa Rosa, CA 95403  Fax: (707) 576-0469 
 
 Any written notice to DISTRICT shall be sent to: 


 
Sweetwater Springs District 


   ATTENTION: General Manager 
   P.O. Box 48    Phone: (707) 869-4000 
   Guerneville, CA  95446  Fax: (707) 869-4005 


 
With a copy to: 
Mike Gogna, District Counsel 
401 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 100  
Santa Rosa, CA 95401   
 


14.9 Professional Seal.  Where applicable in the determination of the 
DISTRICT, the first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional 
responsible for the report/design preparation.   


 
14.10 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any 


provision of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement 
not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any 


Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 11 February 4, 2010 







Agreement for Consulting Management & Inspection Services 12 February 4, 2010 


provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 


 
14.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, 


each of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
as of the date first set forth above. 
 
 
CONSULTANT:     DISTRICT: 
 
 
 
 
By:       By:       


  Stephen Mack, General Manager 
  Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
 
  APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR DISTRICT: 
 
 
      By:       
  Mike Gogna, District Counsel 
 
 
  Date:       







 EXHIBIT A 
 


SCOPE OF 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTON SERVICES 


 
 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


CIP PHASE IV-B, PROJECTS 1 AND 2 
 
Understanding of Project Objectives 
Sweetwater Springs Water District desires to continue their ongoing program to replace aged and 
deteriorating water system infrastructure.  The District has selected items from their Capital 
Improvement Project (CIP) list for design and construction in 2009/10 and 2010/11.  The items 
have been packaged into a two construction projects that are referred to as CIP Phase IV-B, 
Project 1 and Project 2 (See Table 1).  
 
Phase IV-B, Project 1 will involve replacement of approximately ¾ miles of water main with 
new piping and appurtenances in Riverlands Road, Bonita Terrace, below the Schoolhouse tank 
and between Hwy 116 and Old Monte Rio Road (replacing the Handy Andy Booster feed line).   
The project will also involve construction of a new storage tank at the Schoolhouse site, 
replacement of the Upper Schoolhouse tank and installation of storage level monitoring facilities 
at the Harrison Tank site. 
 
Phase IV-B, Project 2 will involve the replacement of approximately 1-1/4 miles of water main 
and appurtenances in  Alder Road, Pebble Way, Heller Street, River Blvd., Birch Lane, Elm 
Avenue and Railroad Avenue and the abandonment of approximately 4,500 lf of parallel 
undersized water main including the transfer of water services to the larger main. 
 
The terrain within some of the work areas is steep and access will be limited.  The construction 
program will need to be sensitive to resident needs and allow for life-safety vehicular access.  
Brelje & Race is familiar with working in these conditions and are prepared to accept the 
challenges associated with managing the project. 
 
Project Approach 
Brelje & Race will provide the full range of services necessary to successfully complete the 
water system rehabilitation projects.  Our project manager and design/resident engineers will 
remain involved in the project during the construction phases.  The following pages list the 
specific project tasks required during the construction phase for each project, in sequential order. 
 
Construction Phase Tasks 
 
Task 1 Bid Services 
Services during the bid process will include arranging for bid advertisement, attendance at the 
pre-bid meeting, preparation of required addenda, and distribution of bid documents to 
prospective bidders and local Builder’s Exchange. Conduct bid opening, prepare bid tabulation 
and provide letter recommendation of bid award to District. 
 







Task 2 Shop Drawings 
Brelje & Race will log and process shop drawings and forward a copy of all submittals and 
associated correspondence to the District. 
 
Task 3 Requests for Information (RFI) 
Respond to RFI’s submitted by contractor. Forward a copy of all RFI’s and responses to District. 
 
Task 4 Schedule Review 
Review contractor’s as-planned schedule for conformance with the contract documents and for 
reasonableness of activity durations and sequence. Transfer review comments to contractor and 
meet with contractor to discuss and clarify any significant issues. 
 
Task 5 Construction Observation 
Make a pre-construction video of the work areas to document existing conditions.  Provide 
District with a DVD of the video.  Provide day-to-day field observation of the work (includes 
construction observation activities to be performed by electrical and geotechnical subconsultants) 
to check for conformance with the requirements of the contract documents, including project 
permits and any mitigation requirements. Make reasonable efforts to take digital photos and 
prepare a photo log for transfer to District at completion of project. Mark up a field set of 
drawings to incorporate contractor’s record drawing markups. Prepare project punch list. 
 
Task 6 Partial Payment Processing 
Review and comment on draft partial payment estimate submitted by Contractor.  Prepare and 
process final partial payment estimates. 
 
Task 7 Construction Progress Meetings 
Organize and conduct construction progress meetings with contractor and District staff on a bi-
weekly basis, or more frequently if needed, to review progress and identify and discuss 
outstanding potential claims issues. 
 
Task 8 Changes & Claims Management 
Perform changes and claims management including but not limited to performing quantity and 
cost analysis for negotiation of change orders, negotiating change order costs and time 
extensions, analyzing claims and compiling video history of project. Prepare and present change 
orders to District for approval.  
 
Task 9 Board Meeting Attendance 
Attend monthly meetings of the Board of Directors on an as-requested basis during the duration 
of the construction project. Prepare and present monthly progress payment requests and report 
summarizing work preformed to date to General Manager. 
 
Task 10 Testing Coordination 
Coordinate materials testing services for quality control of backfill and paving for those portions 
within County rights-of-way. 


Exhibit A Scope of Services 2 February 4, 2010  







Exhibit A Scope of Services 3 February 4, 2010  


 
Task 11 Construction Staking 
Provide construction staking for the two water storage tanks and alignment of the directional 
drilled water main that will replace the Handy Andy Booster Feed main. 
 
Task 12 Project Closeout Services 
Prepare and provide District with a set of Record Drawings in paper and digital format that 
include Contractor and Resident Engineer markups. Obtain documentation from the permitting 
agencies that the permits have been closed. Verify that all post construction mitigation measures 
have been implemented. Issue a statement of substantial completion of all construction in letter 
format to the District with a recommendation that a Notice of Completion be prepared and filed. 
Prepare and forward a draft Notice of Completion to District counsel. Record the Notice of 
Completion following approval of the Board of Directors.  
 
Task 13 Miscellaneous Work & Claims Defense 
No work will be performed under this task unless specifically authorized in writing by the 
District’s General Manager who shall also define the scope of services to be provided. 
 


Table 1 
CIP Phase IV-B Projects 


 
Project 1 


Schoolhouse Tank and Upper Schoolhouse Tank - Construction of a new storage tank and 
booster station at the Schoolhouse site, replacement of the Upper Schoolhouse tank and 
installation of storage level monitoring facilities at the Harrison Tank site. 


 
Riverlands Road – Construction of approximately 1,600 lf of new water main and 
appurtenances in Riverlands Road including two tie-ins to the main in Drake Road. 


 
Handy Andy Booster Feed Line – Construction of approximately 400 lf of new main between 
HWY 116 and the main in Old Monte Rio Road including a crossing of a newly reconstructed 
viaduct. 


 
Harrison Tank – Install tank liquid level monitoring equipment and connect to existing 
telemetry system at site for remote monitoring. 


 
Bonita Terrace – Construction of approximately 1,500 ft of new water main and appurtenances 
in Bonita Terrace, including ties to Schoolhouse Tank and  Delta Way, to create a loop. 


 
Project 2 


Alder Road, Pebble Way & Heller Streets - Construction of approximately 1-1/4 miles of 
water main and appurtenances in  Alder Road, Pebble Way, Heller Street, River Blvd., Birch 
Lane, Elm Avenue and Railroad Avenue and the abandonment of approximately 4,500 lf of 
parallel undersized water main including the transfer of water services to the larger main. 







 
EXHIBIT B 


SERVICES RATE SCHEDULE 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2010 


 
 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


Senior Principal............................................................................................................... $165.00/hour 
Associate Principal ............................................................................................................140.00/hour 
Associate .........................................................................................................  105.00 


 110.00 


Exhibit B 1 February 4, 2010  


Senior Engineer .............................................................................................
Engineer..........................................................................................................  
Engineering Technician................................................................................  


 100.00 Senior Planner................................................................................................
Planner ............................................................................................................  


 105.00 


to 130.00/hour
to 120.00/hour


95.00 to 110.00/hour
80.00 to 90.00/hour


to 150.00/hour
80.00 to 95.00/hour


to 115.00/hour
95.00 to 100.00/hour
80.00 to 90.00/hour
85.00 to 95.00/hour
80.00 to 90.00/hour


Senior Surveyor..............................................................................................
Surveyor ..........................................................................................................  
Survey Technician .........................................................................................  
CAD Technician............................................................................................  
Construction Technician ..............................................................................  


 
EXPERT WITNESS & MEDIATION SERVICES $300.00/hour 
 
FIELD SURVEYING 


One-man Party $145.00/hour 
(Including Survey Equipment & Vehicle) 


 
Two-man Party $200.00/hour 
(Including Survey Equipment & Vehicle) 


 
Three-man Party $235.00/hour 
(Including Survey Equipment & Vehicle) 


 
TYPING AND CLERICAL $60.00/hour 
 
OUTSIDE CONSULTANTS Cost + 15% Handling Charge 
 
MATERIALS & OUTSIDE SERVICES  Cost + 15% Handling Charge 


Stakes, Pipes, Monuments, 
Maps, Reproduction Services, etc. 


 
IN-HOUSE PLOTTING 


Vellum or Bond $8.00/sheet 
Mylar 20.00/sheet 


 
MILEAGE $0.50/mile 
 





		Item V-E - Request for Engineering Services for CIP IV-B

		Meeting Date: February 4, 2010 



		Item V-E.1 - RES 10-3 Engineering Services with B&R

		Item V-E.2 Exhibit A. CIP IV-B B&R Agreement

		RECITALS

		AGREEMENT








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 4, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in December were 14,764 units 


(34.0 AF) and production was 58.8 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales are 
similar and production is less (33.6 and 65.2 AF, respectively).   The 
attached Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains.  In December we had 
10 total leaks and spent 46 man-hours on them.   That’s fewer leaks and  
man-hours than last month (November) and December one year ago.    
Figure 2 shows leak history and man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 
2001 and continues to show a declining trend for both leaks and man hours.     


 
4. Rainfall.  Figure 3 is the rainfall chart for this year starting in October.  The 


data shown in this chart is approximate – I have not found up-to-date 
rainfall data on the web this year and am basing this chart on my 
accumulated information which I get from the Press-Democrat.  I believe it’s 
approximately correct, gives us a decent picture about what’s going on this 
year, and it’s good news.  January rainfall has turned things around as last 
year January was the poorest performing month.  We are not at average yet 
in Guerneville, according to my calculations, but I have read that other areas 
in the Russian River watershed are above average.  Of course continued 
rainfall will be needed to keep us on track for an average or better year.  
And, of course, regardless of rainfall, Sonoma County Water Agency will be 
asking for a Temporary Urgency Change for summer flows because of the 
regulatory requirements of the Biological Opinion on the operations of Warm 
Springs and Coyote Dams.       


   







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
February 4, 2010 


5. CIP IV-B.  CIP IV-B, Project 1 has been advertised with bid openings 
scheduled for February 18, and award of contract anticipated for our March 
meeting.  Construction could then start in April or May.    


 
6. Toilet Rebate Program.   Staff are in discussion with Sonoma County 


Water Agency staff (representing the Guerneville Sanitation District) 
regarding having the toilet rebate program cover the entire District.  
Currently toilet rebates are available to customers of the Guerneville 
Sanitation District which covers most of the District’s Guerneville system and 
none of the District’s Monte Rio system.  We are proposing that the District 
provide toilet rebates for all of the Monte Rio system customers and for the 
Guerneville system customers not part of the Guerneville Sanitation District.  
We are currently working on the details of providing that.  We are thinking 
that $10,000 for the rest of the fiscal year would be an appropriate budget 
amount.  


 
  


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-
01


May-
02


Nov-
02


May-
03


Nov-
03


May-
04


Nov-
04


May-
05


Nov-
05


May-
06


Nov-
06


May-
07


Nov-
07


May-
08


Nov-
08


May-
09


Nov-
09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
February 4, 2010 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500
B


re
ak


s


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


-


50


100


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


Dec
-09


-


350


700


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2010







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-10


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-10


•        Approve Budget May-10
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-09
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-09


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


2010 Urban Water Management Plan December-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-09
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-10


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: February 4, 2010 



